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November	10,	2016		
	
Christine	Baker,	Director	
California	Department	of	Industrial	Relations	
1515	Clay	St.	17th	Floor	
Oakland,	CA	94612	
Submitted	electronically	to	cbaker@dir.ca.gov	
	
RE:	Meeting	Request	with	DIR	Staff		
	
Dear	Director	Baker:		
	
Thank	you	for	the	conference	call	on	October	13	and	for	providing	us	with	the	follow-up	October	
25	DIR	“Crosswalk”	document	in	response	to	our	comments	on	the	proposed	Process	Safety	
Management	for	Petroleum	Refineries	regulation	(GISO	§5189.1),	which	we	submitted	to	the	
Cal/OSHA	Standards	Board	on	September	2,	2016.		
	
As	we	discussed	on	the	call,	our	comments	capture	our	concern	that	the	most	recent	July	2016	
version	of	the	proposed	regulation	is	weaker	than	previous	versions,	notably	the	September	2015	
version.(1)	Our	40	recommendations	for	changes	to	the	July	text	were	our	good	faith	effort	to	
clarify	and	strengthen	the	regulation	by—in	most	cases—reinstating	existing	language	from	the	
September	2015	version.	In	a	few	cases,	we	pointed	out	the	need	for	additional	changes	to	the	
text;	in	all	cases,	however,	we	have	sought	to	support	DIR	in	producing	a	regulation	that	is	
unambiguous,	practical	and	meaningful	for	process	safety,	and	enforceable	by	the	Division.		

																																																								
1	See	General	Industry	Safety	Order	§5189.1,	July	2016,	
(http://www.dir.ca.gov/OSHSB/documents/Process-Safety-Management-for-Petroleum-	
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So	we	are	disappointed	that	the	Crosswalk	document	does	not	appear	to	accept	a	single	one	of	
our	recommendations.	Instead,	we	are	being	provided	a	rationale	for	why	half	of	our	
recommendations	should	be	dismissed	while	the	other	20	recommendations	are	simply	ignored.			
	
On	the	October	13	call,	DIR	suggested	that	the	July	2016	version	simply	moves	text	around	in	the	
document	but	does	not	alter	its	meaning.	While	this	is	correct	in	a	small	number	of	cases,	we’ve	
found	that	many	of	the	changes	made	by	DIR	in	fact	weaken	the	proposal;	they	would	undermine	
the	efforts	of	the	industry’s	own	engineers	to	make	process	safety	improvements,	and	they	would	
blunt	the	effectiveness	of	Cal/OSHA’s	enforcement	actions.		
	
In	many	cases,	DIR	has	introduced	text	in	the	July	draft	that	would	allow	refineries	to	continue	
certain	types	of	practices	that	contributed	to	the	Chevron,	Richmond	fire	of	2012	and	the	
ExxonMobil,	Torrance	explosion	of	2015.		
	
For	example,	against	the	recommendations	of	its	own	engineers	(over	a	period	of	several	years),	
Chevron	did	not	adequately	inspect	for	and	replace	corroded	sections	of	pipe	in	the	plant’s	crude	
unit.	This	eventually	led	to	the	catastrophic	failure	that	endangered	the	lives	of	19	workers	and	
caused	thousands	of	residents	to	seek	medical	attention.	DIR’s	text	under	Mechanical	Integrity	
(subsection	j)	would	allow	these	practices	to	continue:	it	allows	the	refinery	to	develop	its	own	
internal	inspection	and	repair	methodologies,	rather	than	requiring	plants	to	adhere	to	
“Recognized	and	Generally	Accepted	Good	Engineering	Practices,”	or	RAGAGEP.	DIR’s	text	places	
the	burden	on	Cal/OSHA	to	demonstrate	that	a	plant’s	internal	practices	do	not	meet	RAGAGEP;	
this	highly	technical	standard	of	evidence	will	be	difficult	for	the	Division	to	meet.		
	
In	the	attached	Addendum,	we	have	provided	a	partial	list	of	13	examples	of	text	in	the	July	2016	
draft	that	would	allow	refineries	to	continue	the	types	of	practices	that	resulted	in	the	Chevron	
and	ExxonMobil	incidents.		
	
In	several	cases,	we	found	that	DIR’s	July	language	is	at	odds	with	the	report	of	the	Governor’s	
Interagency	Working	Group	on	Refinery	Safety.	For	example,	the	intended	Scope	and	Purpose	of	
the	regulation	in	the	September	2015	draft	(subsection	a)	is	to	reduce	risks	by	preventing	major	
incidents.(2)	This	is	consistent	with	the	key	point	of	the	Working	Group	report,	which	is	“…to	
prevent	refinery	incidents	that	threaten	the	health	and	safety	of	workers,	communities	and	the	
environment.”(3)	However,	in	DIR’s	July	version,	the	Purpose	is	now	simply	to	reduce	the	risk	of	
major	incidents.	
	
We	found	that	DIR’s	definition	of	‘feasible’	continues	to	be	at	odds	with	the	interpretation	of	this	
term	as	applied	under	the	federal	OSH	Act.	The	phrase	“to	the	extent	feasible”	appears	in	section	

																																																								
2	See	General	Industry	Safety	Order	§5189.1,	September	2015,	page	3,	subsection	(a),	Scope	and	
Purpose	(http://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/DoshReg/Process-Safety-Management-for-Refineries/PSM-
Draft-Regulation.2015-09-24.pdf).	
3	Edmond	Brown,	Governor	(February	2014).	Improving	Public	and	Worker	Safety	at	Oil	Refineries.	
Report	of	the	Interagency	Working	Group	on	Refinery	Safety.	See	page	4,	“Safety	and	Prevention	
of	Hazardous	Events.”	(http://www.calepa.ca.gov/Publications/Reports/2014/RefineryRpt.pdf).		
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6(b)(5)	of	the	federal	OSH	Act.(4)		The	Supreme	Court	has	held	that	this	phrase	means	“capable	of	
being	done.”5		The	Court	rejected	the	argument	that	“to	the	extent	feasible”	involves	a	weighing	
of	costs	against	benefit.6		By	adding	qualifiers	to	the	term	‘feasible,’	DIR’s	text	may	be	inconsistent	
with,	and	less	protective	than,	this	interpretation	under	the	federal	OSH	Act.	
	
On	our	October	13	call,	DIR	suggested	that	revising	the	July	2016	version	would	lead	to	significant	
delays.	We	didn’t	understand	that	what	you	meant	was	that	DIR	would	make	no	changes,	despite	
the	open	public	comment	period.	Doesn’t	the	comment	period	exist	so	the	final	version	of	the	
proposed	regulation	can	incorporate	some	of	the	concerns	of	stakeholders?	Given	that	DIR	
already	has	an	earlier,	vetted	version	of	the	regulation	(from	September	2015)	that	has	most	of	
the	language	we	are	seeking,	we	do	not	believe	we	are	asking	for	significant	delays	when	we	
propose	re-invoking	that	language.		
	
In	addition,	because	RAND	conducted	its	economic	analysis	of	the	regulation	based	on	the	
September	2015	version,	we	do	not	understand	how	the	changes	we	are	recommending	would	
trigger	the	need	for	another	comprehensive	analysis,	which	DIR	suggested	to	us	on	the	call.		
	
We	certainly	want	this	proposal	to	move	forward	as	quickly	as	possible.	As	you	know,	at	the	
Standards	Board	hearing	on	September	15,	2016,	Board	Chair	Dave	Thomas	and	Board	members	
Stock,	Harrison	and	Quinlan	called	on	DIR	to	make	the	changes	recommended	in	the	written	
comments	of	the	BGA,	USW	and	state	Labor	Federation.	To	that	end,	we	are	requesting	a	meeting	
with	DIR	staff	as	soon	as	possible	in	order	to	clarify	our	recommendations,	which	we	believe	are	
essential	to	ensuring	that	the	regulation	is	successful	in	(1)	preventing	major	incidents,	and	(2)	
meeting	the	charge	of	the	Governor’s	Interagency	Working	Group	on	Refinery	Safety.		
	
We	would	very	much	appreciate	your	office	contacting	Charlotte	Brody	of	the	BlueGreen	Alliance	
as	soon	as	possible	to	discuss	availability	of	your	staff.	
	
Thank	you	very	much	for	your	attention	to	our	concerns.		
	
Sincerely,	
	
Charlotte	Brody	
BlueGreen	Alliance	
	
Kim	Nibarger	
United	Steelworkers		
	

																																																								
4	See	29	U.S.C.	§	655(b)(5)	(“The	Secretary,	in	promulgating	standards	dealing	with	toxic	materials	
or	harmful	physical	agents	under	this	subsection,	shall	set	the	standard	which	most	adequately	
assures,	to	the	extent	feasible,	on	the	basis	of	the	best	available	evidence,	that	no	employee	will	
suffer	material	impairment	of	health	or	functional	capacity	even	if	such	employee	has	regular	
exposure	to	the	hazard	dealt	with	by	such	standard	for	the	period	of	his	working	life.”)	(emphasis	
added).			
5	American	Textile	Mfrs.	Inst.	v.	Donovan,	452	U.S.	490,	508-09	(1981).		
6	Id.,	452	U.S.	at	509	(“cost-benefit	analysis	by	OSHA	is	not	required	by	the	statute	because	
feasibility	analysis	is”).	
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Lena	Moffitt	
Sierra	Club	
	
Mitch	Seaman	
California	Labor	Federation	
	
Jeremy	Smith	
State	Building	and	Construction	Trades	Council	
	
	
cc.		 Standards	Board	Chair	and	Members,	via	Marlee	Hart	

David	Lanier,	Secretary,	Labor	and	Workforce	Development	Agency	
Cliff	Rechtschaffen,	Office	of	Governor	Jerry	Brown	

	
	
Addendum	Attached		 	












